
Meeting of:  Heywood Township Committee
Date: Monday, 8th October, 2018
Time: 6.30 pm.
Venue: The Phoenix Centre, Heywood

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  CIVIC PRAYERS 

2.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

4.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

5.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

6.  OPEN FORUM 

Half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to raise any 
issues relevant to the business of the Committee and the Township. 

7.  MINUTES 4 - 9

Minutes of the meeting of Heywood Township Committee held 
Monday, 4th June 2018. 

Public Document Pack



8.  HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP DELEGATED SUB COMMITTEE 10 - 12

Minutes of the meeting of Heywood Township Delegated Sub 
Committee held 5th July 2018. 

9.  PROPOSED BOUNDARY CHANGES 

Assistant Director (Legal, Governance, Workforce to report) 

10.  REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES 13 - 15

For the Township to informed of a review of Polling districts and 
places. 

11.  EASY HUBS AND COMMUNITY CONNECTOR SERVICE 

Presentation by the Adult Care Service 

12.  OUR ROCHDALE THE ONLINE DIRECTORY OF SERVICES 

HMR CCG to present  

13.  YOUTH SERVICES IN HEYWOOD 

A presentation by Rochdale Borough Council’s Youth Service 

14.  ALLOCATIONS PLAN 

A presentation by the Director of Economy detailing proposed sites 
and allocations within the Heywood Township area. 

15.  CONSULTATION ON THE REVIEW BY THE TOWNSHIPS REVIEW 
STEERING GROUP 

16 - 23

To consider the findings of the Townships Review Steering Group 

Heywood Township Committee Members
Councillor Jacqueline Beswick Councillor Ray Dutton
Councillor Susan Emmott Councillor Peter Malcolm
Councillor Alan McCarthy Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Linda Robinson Councillor Peter Rush
Councillor Carol Wardle

For more information about this meeting, please contact: 
John Addison
Governance and Committee Services



Floor 2, Number One Riverside,
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU
Telephone: 01706 924829 
e-mail: john.addison@rochdale.gov.uk 

mailto:john.addison@rochdale.gov.uk


HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Monday, 4 June 2018

PRESENT:  Councillor Peter Rush (Chair); Councillors Beswick, Dutton, 
Susan Emmott, Malcolm, McCarthy, O'Rourke and Robinson

OFFICERS:   V. White (Townships & Communities Manager); A. Storey 
(Head of Capital Projects & Highways), M. Aiken (Team Leader Capital 
Programme & Delivery – Highways), J. Butterworth (Property Client & 
Strategy Officer) and M. Garraway (Senior Governance & Committees 
Officer).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  10 members of public

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Wardle

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
54 There were no declarations of interest.

APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR
55 Decision:
That Councillor Dutton be appointed to serve as the Vice Chair of Heywood 
Township Committee for the 2018/19 Municipal Year.

OPEN FORUM
56 The following matters were raised in the open forum:

a) Junction 19 Housing development
Mr Haughton submitted a written question raising concerns about the 
impact on local resident amenity upon commencement of building of the 
proposed houses.  Mr Haughton gave particular reference to hours of 
working, noise, dust and mud containment.  The Township Committee 
were requested to explain how residents could raise matters arising during 
the period of construction.

Members of the Committee were informed that conditions within the 
planning permission covered matters relating to hours of working, noise, 
dust and mud containment.  The Chair of the Township Committee and 
Ward Councillors would be available to liaise with the Council’s Planning 
Enforcement Team on behalf of residents should matters arise.

b) School crossing provision at Pilsworth/Egerton/Argyle junction
Mr Clarke addressed the Township Committee seeking information as to 
why the school crossing patrol person who usually operates at the site had 
not been present in recent weeks.

Decision:

Page 4

Agenda Item 7



That the Director of Children’s Services be requested to update the 
Committee as to any issues with the stated post.

MINUTES
57 Further to minute 52 of the meeting held on 19th February 2018, 
Councillor McCarthy raised the issue of the World War One Commemorations 
which had been paid for by the Township Committee but not been delivered.  
The Township Committee expressed their disappointment that they had not 
received the benefits of this scheme for which they had taken proactive steps 
to ensure that would receive a full year programme.

Members raised the issue of Waterfold Lane clearway markings for which they 
had approved £60,000 of Township Funds two years ago but the scheme had 
not been delivered.  Furthermore Members requested an update on the Moss 
Road scheme which remained outstanding.

Councillor Robinson requested an update in relation to the Alexandra Street 
Area which had not been received (Minute 40a, 27th November 2017, refers).

Further to minute 53 the Committee had requested a list of outstanding pot 
holes and those which had exceeded the repair time.  The Head of Highways 
undertook to provide a direct response to Members.

In relation to work undertaken by utilities companies Members of the 
Committee sought assurances from the Head of Highways that the Council 
was using its’ statutory powers to claim back resources where they had 
repaired inferior work by utilities companies.  The Head of Highways 
undertook to provide information relating to this matter.

Decision:
That the minutes of the meeting held on 19th February 2018 be approved as a 
correct record.

  

PRESENTATION - FRIENDS OF HOPWOOD PARK
58 The Township Committee received a presentation from S. Trickett on 
behalf of the Friends of Hopwood Park setting out details of progress made in 
restoring the Tree House Café within the park.  

Decision:
That the report be welcomed and the Friends of Hopwood Park be 
commended on their hard work.

REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES
59 The Township Committee considered a report consulting Members on 
the review of Polling Districts and Polling places within the Township.

Page 5



Alternatives considered:
The report was brought to the Township Committee as part of a statutory 
consultation, therefore no alternatives were considered.

Decision:
That the proposed Polling Districts and Polling places within the Township be 
supported.

Reason for decision:
The existing arrangements within the Township are satisfactory for the 
functions of administering elections.

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP DELEGATION ARRANGEMENTS AND 
APPOINTMENTS 2018/19
60 The Township Committee considered a report seeking confirmation of 
the   delegated decision making arrangements for the year and appointments 
to Township Sub-Committees, including the Chair and Vice Chair and other 
bodies.

Alternatives considered:
The Committee could choose not to appoint to sub-committees and undertake 
all delegated functions themselves, but this may have a detrimental impact on 
the ability to progress Township priorities or deal with urgent items of 
business.

Decision:
1. The Heywood Township Delegated Sub-Committee be retained on the 

terms of reference as set out in Appendix 1 of the report.
2. That all Members of the Heywood Township Committee be appointed to 

the Heywood Township Delegated Sub-Committee with Councillor Rush 
and Councillor Dutton being appointed as Chair and Vice Chair 
respectively.

3. That Councillor Dutton and Mr B. Davies be appointed to the East 
Lancashire Railway Trust.

4. That Councillors Dutton, Susan Emmott, Malcolm and Rush, be appointed 
to the Heywood Magic Market Board.

5. That Councillor Robinson be appointed as the Township Older Persons 
Champion.

6. That Councillor Rush be appointed as the Township Highways Champion.
7. That Councillors Beswick, Dutton, Malcolm, McCarthy, O’Rourke and 

Robinson be appointed as the Township Planning Panel and the dates of 
meetings be reviewed and circulated.

Reason for decision:
The Council has established and appoints Township Committees that may 
exercise both executive and non-executive powers as set out in the 
Responsibility for Council Functions in Part 3 of the Constitution. The Sub-
Committee exercises either delegated powers or acts on any matter detailed 
in the Committee’s Terms of Reference on which it is essential to take a 
decision. The proper appointment of Sub-Committees is required to permit the 

Page 6



undertaking of delegated functions in accordance with statutory and 
procedural requirements, and appointments to Working Groups and Other 
Bodies are required to enable the Township Committee to undertake and to 
respond to the full range of issues relevant to the Township.

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDS REVIEW
61 The Township Committee considered a report which presented a 
review of the Township revenue and capital expenditure during 2017/18 and 
provided options for the allocation of funds for 2018/19.
 
Members were also requested to consider the Heywood Township Funds 
terms and conditions and to agree delegation arrangements concerning 
funding decisions.

Members of the Township Committee expressed their concerns that they had 
not received funds that had been approved for undelivered schemes.  In 
particular West Heywood ward had provided funds for World War One 
commemorations but whilst the scheme had been rolled out in other parts of 
the Borough very little had been received in West Heywood and North 
Heywood.
 
Alternatives Considered:
The Committee could decide whether or not to approve the allocation of funds 
to funding streams and adopt the terms and conditions.
  
Decision:
1. That the expenditure, commitments and balances for Heywood Township 

revenue and capital funds at financial year end 2017/18 be noted.
2. That the findings of the review of Township Funds 2017/18 and 

evaluations received to date for some of the projects funded be noted.
3. That the allocation of Heywood Township Funds to funding streams in 

2018/19 be approved.
4. That the terms and conditions for Heywood Township revenue and capital 

funds for 2018/19 be approved.
5. That the delegation arrangements for Heywood Township Funds 2018/19 

as detailed in the report be approved.
6. That the funds claimed back from the World War One commemorations be 

returned to Ward funds. 
 
Reasons for the Decisions:
Management of the Heywood Township Fund is delegated to the Heywood 
Township Delegated Sub Committee. Heywood Township Funds are allocated 
to projects that benefit the Township’s community and environment, and 
realise the Township priorities.

LAND ADJACENT TO RAILWAY STREET WORKS, HEYWOOD
62 The Township Committee considered a report consulting the Township 
on the release of land adjacent to Railway Street Works, Heywood, as an off 
market sale to the adjoining land owner.

Page 7



Alternatives considered:
Members of the Committee sought clarification as to whether the land could 
be used as part of ongoing developments around the East Lancashire Railway 
Station.

Decision:
That the report be deferred pending consultation with East Lancashire 
Railway as potential use as a car park or other use in relation to ongoing 
developments at the Station.

Reason for decision:
The development of the East Lancashire Railway Station is a priority for the 
Township.

RELEASE OF SURPLUS COUNCIL LAND FOR DISPOSAL IN HEYWOOD 
TOWNSHIP
63 The Township Committee considered a report seeking approval for the 
disposal of land at Aspinall Street in Heywood, for less than market rate.

Alternatives considered:
To retain this site in its current use.

Decision:
That the Cabinet Member for Finance be advised that the Township 
Committee recommend the identified land at Aspinall Street in Heywood be 
approved for disposal.

Reason for decision:
There is potential to develop the site and its sale would generate a capital 
receipt for the Council and reduce maintenance liabilities.

HEYWOOD ADDITIONAL HIGHWAY INVESTMENT PROPOSED 
PROGRAMME
64 The Township Committee considered a report seeking approval of 
proposed carriageway and footway improvement schemes.  

Alternatives considered:
The alternative to carrying out this programme would be to select schemes 
based on condition only. This approach would lead to a deterioration of the 
network overall and it is poor asset management to treat only the worst roads 
in the area. Using an asset management approach will assist Rochdale in 
maintaining its current level three funding from the Department for Transport.

Decision:
1. That the proposed carriageway and footway improvement schemes for 

Heywood Townships be approved.
2. Where events external to the Council require rapid response or agreement 

in principle, the committee authorise the Head of Highways to vary the 
programme in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Environment and 
the Chair of Heywood Township Committee.

Page 8



Reason for decision:
To maximise the improvement to the network by carrying out the most efficient 
and cost effective works to the carriageways and footways.

Page 9



HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP DELEGATED SUB COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday, 5 July 2018

PRESENT:  Councillor Peter Rush (Chair); Councillors Beswick, Dutton, 
Susan Emmott, McCarthy, O'Rourke and Robinson

OFFICERS:  A. Storey (Head of Capital Projects & Highways), S. Hay 
(Township Manager) and M. Garraway (Senior Governance & Committees 
Officer).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  29 public.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillors Malcolm and Wardle

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
1 Councillor Rush declared a pecuniary interest in submitted applications 
for funding as contained within agenda item 6, namely applications from 
Heywood Food Bank (HP/07/18); Heywood Charities Fete 2018 (HP/13/18); 
Sandon House Community Centre Insulation Upgrade (HTC/07/18).

Councillor Dutton declared a pecuniary interest in the application from 
Heywood Charities Fete 2018 (HP/13/18).

URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
2 The Committee were advised that three additional applications for 
funding from the Heywood Township Funds had been received from the 
following:

 Rochdale Hornets Sporting Foundation,
 Roch Valley Raiders BMX Club,
 RBC Highways for a Traffic Regulation Order in the Town Centre Car 

Parks.

The grounds for urgency on each application being that the event took place 
before the next meeting of the Sub-Committee. 

MINUTES
3 Further to minute 13 (4) – HTC/06/17 – Berwick Close Grass verge – of 
the meeting held on 19th October 2017. Members of the Committee requested 
an amendment for the minute to read as follows:

HTC/06/17 – 
Berwick Close 
Grass verge 
replacement.

To approve the allocation of £25,500 from the 
Township Capital Fund 2017/18, on condition that the 
Guinness Trust confirm their acceptance that they will 
maintain the site thereafter.  Should no confirmation be 
received by the meeting of the Heywood Township 
Committee meeting on 8th October 2018, that the 
decision falls and the funds revert back to the 
Heywood Township Capital fund for reallocation.  

Page 10

Agenda Item 8



 
Resolved: That with the amendment detailed above that the minutes of the 
meeting of Heywood Township Delegated Sub-Committee held on 19th 
October 2017 be approved as a correct record.

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2018/19
4 The Sub-Committee considered the report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods which provided an update on revenue and capital 
expenditure, commitments and balances of Heywood Township Funds 
2018/19 and to enable the Sub-Committee to consider the allocation of funds 
to proposed projects.
 
Alternatives considered: In considering the report, Members would consider 
whether or not to approve the allocation of funds to projects as appropriate.
 
Decision: (1) That the expenditure, commitments and balances for Heywood 
Township revenue and capital funds as detailed in Appendix 1, 1A and 2 of 
the report be noted;
(2) That decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in Appendix 3 
of the report be noted;
(3) That it be noted that the Townships and Communities Manager has 
assessed proposed projects to be considered for funding against the criteria 
of eligibility for the Heywood Township Fund, the priorities of the Township 
and that any specific risks had been identified in the report;
(4) That the applications for Township Funds be dealt with as follows:

Reference Application Decision
HP/01/18 Read and Feed 2018 Approve £2138
HP/02/18 Pilsworth Road bollard 

timer for LED sign
Refuse on the grounds that 
Highways should pay for this 
work from their budget.

HP/03/18 Heywood 1940's Day 
2019

Approve £10000

HP/04/18 Heywood War Memorial 
Improvement

Delegate to the Chair in 
consultation with the Vice Chair 
pending further information on 
an   alternative supplier. 

HP/06/18 Fish stock for Heywood 
& District Angling 
Society

Defer to a future meeting 
pending further information as 
to whether the site is included 
within development plans for 
adjacent sites.

HP/07/18 Heywood Food Bank 
Re-location

Approve £2500

HP/08/18 Hope Community Group 
After School Club

The Township Manager enquire 
as to whether computer 
provision at Crimblecroft Centre 
and Eddy Hill can be 
transferred to the Back o’ Moss

HP/09/18 Family summer Approve £1265

Page 11



sessions
HP/10/18 National Play Day Approve £750
HP/11/18 HeyKids Popstars the 

Musical
Approve £1250

HP/13/18 Heywood Charities Fete 
2018

Approve £4412.38

HP/14/18 Talented Athlete 
Scheme - Handball 
Great Britain/England 
(Joshua McDaid)

Approve £1000 from projects 
fund and £333 from each of the 
three Ward funds.

HE/01/18 Heywood 
Remembrance Sunday 
Event 2018

Approve £1665

HE/02/18 Heywood Christmas 
Festival 2018

Approve £6000

HP/19/18 Rochdale Hornets 
Foundation League for 
Life

Approve £4250

HTC/01/18 Bury Old Road/Moss 
Hall Road Junction 
Protection

Delegate to the Chair in 
consultation with the Vice Chair 
and Ward Councillors following 
a site visit to be arranged by 
the Head of Highways with 
Members.

HTC/03/18 Edgeworth Close 
Parking Provision

Refuse

HTC/04/18 Heywood Civic Centre 
Concourse Lighting

Approve £7142.96

HTC/05/18 Rochdale Road 
East/Harefield Drive 
Junction Waiting 
Restrictions

Approve £5000

HTC/06/18 Rochdale Lane/Brierley 
Street Waiting 
Restrictions

Refuse

HTC/07/18 Sandon House 
Community Centre 
Insulation Upgrade

Approve £3250

Roch Valley Raiders Defer
HTC/07/17 TRO for Town Centre 

Car Parking
Approve £9500

Reason for decision:
Management of the Heywood Township Fund is a function that has been 
delegated to the Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee. Heywood 
Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the Township’s 
community and environment and which will realise the Township priorities.

Page 12



Report to Heywood Township Committee

Date of Meeting 8th October 2018
Portfolio Councillor Liam O’Rourke, 

Cabinet Member for 
Resources 

Report Author Clare Poole
Public/Private Document Public

Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

The statutory review of Polling Districts and Polling Places is underway and 
the consultation period ended on 27 July 2018.
A final report on any recommendations arising from the review will be taken to 
full Council on 17 October 2018 for approval. 

Recommendation

2. Members of the Heywood Township Committee to consider the proposed 
changes to polling districts and polling places within the Township arising from 
the review.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

3.3

The Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013 included a new 
provision altering the timing of statutory reviews of parliamentary polling 
districts and polling places. This meant that all local authorities were required 
to complete a statutory review between 1 October 2013 and 31 January 2015. 
Subsequent compulsory reviews must be started and completed within the 
period of 16 months that starts on 1 October of every fifth year after 1 October 
2013. 
This review must be completed and implemented by the end of December 
2018, so for the changes to be included in the register on 1 December this 
year, Full Council must consider and confirm the proposals at their meeting on 
17 October 2018.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1 The Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013 requires Electoral 
Registration Officers to review the borough’s polling districts and places every 
5 years.

Page 13

Agenda Item 10



4.2 The process required a period of public consultation which ran from 2 July 
2018 to 27 July 2018.

4.3 Responses and comments received during the consultation period and 
resulting recommendations are detailed below: 

WEST 
HEYWOOD

COMMENT - KD - Our Lady & St Paul's Church - now closed and the site is 
being re-developed.  Alternative polling station required for future elections
RECOMMENDED - to have a polling station at Our Lady & St Paul's school

NORTH 
HEYWOOD

COMMENT - Cllr Susan Emmott - LB - Biwater House, Gregge Steet is in the 
incorrect polling district and needs to be moved from MC
ACTION - To amend this anomaly

HOPWOOD 
HALL

COMMENT - Cllr Susan Emmott - MC - Biwater House, Gregge Steet is in the 
incorrect polling district and needs to be moved to LB
ACTION - To amend this anomaly

4.4 Members role in contributing to the review is the local knowledge and links 
they have with the local communities of their wards to develop the most 
appropriate alignment of polling district boundaries and polling stations with 
the most suitable facilities to serve the electorate.

4.5 To allow for efficient publication of the register of electors, including any 
proposed alterations to polling districts, Council will be required to consider 
any amendments in October so that they can be included in the annual 
revision of the register of electors on 1 December. 

4.6 Any changes to polling stations will be implemented in time for the local 
elections in 2019.

4.7 Any alternative polling districts or polling stations proposed during the 
consultation period will be considered.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. No direct financial implications.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

6.2

6.3

There are risks to the electoral process if polling district boundaries are 
misaligned or polling places are not fit for purpose, as issues such as 
distance to the polling place or conditions within the premise can dissuade 
electors from participating in the democratic process and may not cast their 
vote.  
Legislation specifies the steps the relevant authority must take to conduct a 
review in Schedule A1 to the Representation of the People Act 1983.
It states that when designating polling districts, the authority must seek to 
ensure all electors have reasonable facilities for voting as are practicable in 
the circumstances.

Page 14



It also states that when designating polling places, the relevant authority 
must:
Seek to ensure that all the electors in the constituency have such 
reasonable facilities for voting as are practicable in the circumstances;
Seek to ensure that so far as is reasonable and practicable, the polling 
places they are responsible for are accessible to all electors, including 
those who are disabled, and when considering the designation of a polling 
place, must have regard to the accessibility needs of disabled persons.
In addition, the polling place for a polling district must be within the area of 
the district unless special circumstances make it desirable to designate an 
area either wholly or partly outside of the polling district.
The first proposed change within Heywood Township rectifies an anomaly of 
properties between the LB and MC polling districts already included in the 
electoral register.
The second recommendation provides electors in polling district KD with a 
conveniently located polling place in the centre of the polling district and on a 
site next to the premises previously used as a polling place.
There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

Consultation

7.1
7.2

7.3

7.4

Public consultation started on Monday 2 July and ran until Friday 27 July.
All elected members, MP’s and local political party offices were contacted 
during the consultation period inviting them to make submissions.
Details of the consultation were on public deposit at Number One Riverside, 
Customer Service Centres in Heywood, Middleton, Milnrow and Littleborough 
and available to view on the council’s website.
Final recommendations will be made for Full Council approval on 17 October.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None N/A

For Further Information Contact: Clare Poole, Tel: 01706 924818, 
clare.poole@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 15



Agenda Item

Report to Heywood Township Committee

Date of Meeting 8th October 2018
Portfolio Neighbourhoods, 

Community & Culture
Report Author Valery White
Public/Private Document Public Document

Consultation on the review by the 
Townships Review Steering Group

1. Executive Summary

1.1 In January 2018, Township Chairs and a cross-party group of Elected 
Members formed a working group to look at how we engage with our 
communities, and the workings of the Townships. Members of the Townships 
Review Steering Group were appointed by Group Leaders.

1.2 The group was facilitated by Sir Steve Houghton, Leader of Barnsley Council, 
and officers from the Local Government Association.

1.3 The purpose of the group was to consider the following in the context of 
cooperative values – self-help, self-responsibility, democracy, equality, equity 
and solidarity, and behaviours playing a key part in the future role of the 
Townships:

 Do we need to improve engagement with our communities?
 Do Members and Townships need to link into the public service 

reform and Cooperative council agendas?
 Do we need to work better with partners and our communities at a 

neighbourhood level?
 Are we aiming to ‘tidy up’ existing Township structures/processes, or 

should we aim for more radical change?

1.4 The report of the Township Review Members Panel contains a number of 
recommendations for consideration and is attached as Appendix 1 to this 
report.

1.5 Views from Townships are sought as part of this consultation. Any changes to 
Township governance would require approval by Full Council.

Page 16

Agenda Item 15



2. Recommendations

2.1 It is recommended that Members –

(i) Note the report and consider the recommendations contained in 
Appendix 1 attached - Report of Township Review Members Panel 30th 
May 2018.

(ii) Offer comments on the findings of the review.
(iii) Offer views as part of the consultation and note that any changes to 

Townships structure or governance would require subsequent approval 
at full Council.

3. Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Following the outcome of the Members’ review of Townships, it is considered 
appropriate to now consult with all Members and with individual Townships. 
This is to ensure transparency prior to any changes in Township 
arrangements.

4. Key Points for Consideration

The key recommendations are highlighted in the attached report (Appendix 1).
The Townships Review highlighted the following key issues:

Members should have a broader role in having oversight of issues such as 
Health & Social Care and other issues at a township level, and should play a 
stronger role in developing more resilient communities

There should be a continued recognition of different needs and priorities 
throughout the Borough, across townships and at a neighbourhood level

Members should have a role in encouraging co-creation within communities

A re-structure of the Rochdale Township

Consideration should be given to developing greater core capacity of 
Township staffing levels

Creation of ward alliances 

4.1 The creation of two Township areas in place of the existing Rochdale 
Township would increase the number of committees and sub-committees to 
five, increasing the resources required to facilitate these meetings.

4.2 The creation of two Township areas in place of the existing Rochdale 
Township would require a re-alignment of the Township Capital and Revenue 
budgets, in line with the population in each Township.

Page 17



5. Alternatives Considered

Following consultation with all Members and Township committees -

5.1 Cabinet Members could choose to go with all or part of this proposal, e.g. it 
may be that the new ways of working are favoured, but that the geographical 
changes to the Rochdale Township is not. 

5.2 Cabinet Members could reject the proposal if they feel that their Townships 
are already effective in working co-creatively with their communities.

6. Costs and Budget Summary

Subject to the consultation:

6.1 It is anticipated that any changes to the geographical make-up of the 
Townships will be achieved from within existing staffing budgets.

6.2 A geographical change to the make-up of the Townships would require re-
alignment of the Townships’ existing Capital and Revenue budgets.

6.3 Members would need to consider the need for additional resources and 
capacity from new funding or within existing services across the organisation 
to support greater capacity within the Townships team.

7. Risk and Policy Implications

7.1 There are no risk or policy implications.

8. Consultation

8.1 Informal Cabinet, Elected Members, Township Committees: Heywood 8th 
October 2018, Rochdale 10th October 2018, Middleton 11th October 2018, 
Pennines 16th October 2018/Informal Cabinet/Council

Background Papers Place of Inspection

For Further Information Contact: Valery White
valery.white@rochdale.gov.uk
Tel: 01706 924858

Page 18



 Appendix 1  - Final report, including recommendations of Panel

Report of: Townships Review Members Panel

Date: 30th May 2018

Report Author: Valery White – Townships & Communities Manager 

1. Executive Summary

Aims & Objectives

In January 2018, Township Chairs and a cross-party group of Elected Members formed a 
working group to look at the structures and workings of the Townships. Members of the 
Townships Review Steering Group were appointed by Group Leaders.

The group was facilitated by Sir Steve Houghton, Leader of Barnsley Council, and officers 
from the Local Government Association.

The purpose of the group was to consider the following in the context of cooperative 
values (Self-help, Self-responsibility, Democracy, Equality, Equity and Solidarity) and 
behaviours playing a key part in the future role of the townships:

Do we need to improve engagement with our communities?

Do Members and Townships need to link into the public service reform and 
Cooperative Council agendas?

Do we need to work better with partners and our communities at a neighbourhood 
level?

Are we aiming to ‘tidy up’ existing Township structures/processes, or should we 
aim for more radical change?

2. Overview from the sessions

It was recognised that members already provide strong leadership in their communities. It 
was also acknowledged that Members have an important role to play as Leaders of Place, 
alongside their communities, partners and officers. There is now an opportunity for 
Members to further develop their roles within place.

Over five sessions, concluding on the 30th May, the group identified their priorities for 
future working and how members see their roles in the future. It was recognised that there 
needs to be a culture change among services, staff and residents to encourage self-
responsibility and resilience within our communities.

Page 19



 Appendix 1  - Final report, including recommendations of Panel

3. Township Structures

An element of the review looked at current Township structures. It was seen that the 
current geographical make-up of the Townships delivers inconsistency in terms of 
population, number of wards and number of Elected Members.    In order to address this, 
members of the group felt that this review was an opportunity to consider splitting the 
Rochdale Township into two separate Townships.

4. Recommendations

The recommendations from the Members Panel were as follows -

1. Members should have a broader role in having oversight of issues such as 
Health & Social Care and other issues at a township level, and should play a 
stronger role in developing more resilient communities. 

a. Encouraging self-reliance in the community
b. Encouraging more engagement
c. Working alongside communities

2. There should be a continued recognition of different needs and priorities 
throughout the Borough, across townships and at a neighbourhood level.

a. There should be a core offer of services throughout the Borough, whilst 
ensuring that there remains scope to be flexible with delivery of services at a 
township level.

b. Members and services need to recognise the diversity of communities at a 
neighbourhood level

3. Members should have a role in encouraging co-creation within communities
a. Members have an important role in delivering community capacity and as an 

outcome support an increase in the number of volunteers
b. This could result support an increase in the number of volunteering hours

4. A re-structure of the Rochdale Township

4.1 The group considered the Rochdale Township, which is made up of nine 
wards . They considered how effective a committee of 27 members was, and 
whether there was an option to reduce the township to a more manageable 
level. A number of models were discussed. Members finally agreed that the 
creation of an additional township within Rochdale was the preferred option. 
The make-up of the proposed new township areas are shown below:

Page 20



 Appendix 1  - Final report, including recommendations of Panel

Rochdale ‘A’ Rochdale ‘B’
Balderstone & Kirkholt

Castleton
Central Rochdale

Kingsway
Milkstone & Deeplish

Bamford
Healey
Norden

Spotland & Falinge

Recommendation: 

I. Rochdale Township be split as shown above. 
II. A name for each of these township areas be agreed.

5. Consideration should be given to developing greater core capacity of 
Township staffing levels

Reason for Recommendations

As a Co-operative Council, there is a commitment to moving towards being a Co-operative 
Borough. The recommendations in this report will assist members in working with our 
communities, encouraging and building resilience. Members will continue to have a front 
facing leadership role in delivering against the Council priorities for the Borough. At the 
moment, there are 5 Township Officers and a Township and Communities Manager. The 
review has highlighted a capacity issue in terms of core staffing to enable greater levels of 
community engagement and support township delivery. 

6. Creation of ward alliances 

Recommendation: The creation of Ward Alliances in all wards across the borough

Members are asked to consider that each ward could develop a ‘Ward Alliance’. The 
alliances would facilitate discussion around issues of concern at a very local level, and 
could influence decision making around allocation of Township funds at a neighbourhood 
level.  An example of how this could work is as follows:

 3 x Ward Members
 6 x Members of the public (as a minimum)

o Members agreed by application process
 Meetings bi-monthly – serviced by a Community Development Worker**
 Dispute Resolutions Procedure introduced
 Minutes of meetings go to Township Committees

**Would need to be recruited in addition to current staff.

Page 21



 Appendix 1  - Final report, including recommendations of Panel

Alternatives Considered

I. Members could choose to go with all or part of this proposal, e.g. it may be that the 
new ways of working are favoured, but that the geographical changes to the 
Rochdale Township is not. Conversely it may be that the geographical changes are 
accepted, but that Members would prefer to work as they currently do with area 
forums and thematic partnerships.

II. Members could reject the proposal if they feel that their Townships are already 
effective in working co-creatively with their communities.

Other Implications for consideration

The creation of an additional Township would increase the number of committees and 
sub-committees to five, increasing the resources required to facilitate these meetings.

The creation of an additional Township would lead to a re-alignment of the Township 
Capital & Revenue budgets, in line with changes in population in each Township.

Consultation

Informal Cabinet, Township Committees: Heywood 8th October 2018, Rochdale 10th 
October 2018, Middleton 11th October 2018, Pennines 16th October 2018, Informal 
Cabinet, Council. 

Page 22



Appendix 2

Corporate Plan
People

Safeguarding and protecting our vulnerable people and supporting people of all ages to be 
healthier, confident, resilient, in control and to successfully manage their lives. Enabling 

communities to thrive and develop

Place
We will create safe, resilient, flourishing and high quality places where people choose to live, 

work and invest

Prosperity
Encouraging business growth and enterprise, creating the conditions for more good quality 
jobs. We will work co-operatively, directing our resources towards achieving the outcomes 

identified in partnership plans

Co-operative Values & Principles
Co-operative Values

• Self-help
• Self-responsibility
• Democracy
• Equality
• Equity
• Solidarity

Principles of Co-operative Councils
• Social partnership
• Democratic engagement
• Co-production
• Enterprise and social economy
• Maximising social value
• Community leadership - new role for 

councillors
• New models of meeting priority needs
• Innovation
• Learning
• Walking the talk

Page 23


	Agenda
	7 Minutes
	8 Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee
	10 Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places
	15 Consultation on the review by the Townships Review Steering Group
	Appendix 1 - Report of Townships Review Members Panel
	Appendix 2  - Townships Review


